DRAFT

City oF FORT PIERCE
PLANNING BOARD

Planning Board Minutes

OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE FORT PIERCE CITY PLANNING BOARD HELD ON
MONDAY, OCTOBER 13, 2025, IN FORT PIERCE CITY HALL, COMMISSION CHAMBERS, 100
NORTH US HIGHWAY 1, FORT PIERCE, FLORIDA.

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. ROLL CALL

Mr. Edwards entered the meeting at 2:02 PM.

Present: Clayton Johnson; Nichelle Clemons; Christopher Widing; Justine Carter; Alexander
Edwards; Ryan Collins; Anton Kreisl, Chair

Staff Present: Chris Suneson, Assistant Planning Director
Vennis Gilmore, Senior Planner/Historic Preservation Planner
Kerry Driver, Senior Planner
Alicia Rosenthal, Planning and Development Organizer

Attendees: Nicole Fogarty, St. Lucie County School Board Ex Officio Member
Stephanie Heidt, Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council

4, CONSIDERATION OF ABSENCES

All Planning Board members were in attendance.
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
a. Minutes from the September 8, 2025 meeting.

Motion was made by Nichelle Clemons, and seconded by Justine Carter to approve the
minutes from the September 8, 2025 meeting.



Minutes of Fort Pierce Planning Board - October 13, 2025

Page 2

AYE: Christopher Widing, Justine Carter, Ryan Collins, Clayton Johnson, Nichelle Clemons,
Chair Anton Kreisl

Passed

NEW BUSINESS

Comprehensive Plan EAR Outreach Presentation
Stephanie Heidt, Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council

Ms. Heidt, Deputy Executive Director of the Treasure Coast Regional Planning

Council, presented an update on the Evaluation and Appraisal Review of the City’s
Comprehensive Plan. She explained a comprehensive plan is a blueprint for guiding future
development and growth while considering the community's needs and the environment. Ms.
Heidt said the reason for a comprehensive plan is that hope is not a plan, and it is important
for people to maintain a quality of life. She gave an overview of the elements included in the
comprehensive plan and noted that all the elements work together. Ms. Heidt outlined the
review process and highlighted that evaluating the plan is important because conditions do
change and the plan is required to be updated every seven years. She stated local issues that
need to be addressed, including highlighting a rational boundary, proper development of
proper uses in the proper places, ensuring zoning and land use are consistent and right,
cleaning up the city, and supporting small businesses. Ms. Heidt provided the public outreach
schedule, which will conclude with a meeting with the youth council. She said a separate
survey will be conducted with different questions to get the young people's input. She spoke
about the importance of legislative consistency and noted the 2025 legislative change to
Senate Bill 180, which prohibits the city from enacting more “restrictive or burdensome”
comprehensive plan amendments, land development regulations or procedures related to
development approvals from August 1, 2024, through October 1, 2027. Ms. Heidt said the
senate bills are forever changing and evolving. She said the next step is updating the data and
analysis, and the map series. She concluded that the transmittal hearing to the City
Commission will be on January 29, 2026.

Housing Needs Assessment Presentation
Stephanie Heidt, Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council

Stephanie Heidt, Deputy Executive Director of the Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council,
presented the Housing Needs Assessment and Implementation Plan for St. Lucie County from
2023-2024. She stated the survey noted a difficulty in affording housing costs in St. Lucie
County due to mortgage interest rates, insurance, property taxes, development cost and
supply and demand. Ms. Heidt noted that 42% of households in St. Lucie County have more
than 30% of their income going to housing costs. She showed the increase in the median sale
price and the increase in monthly rental costs for St. Lucie County from 2012 to 2022. Ms.
Heidt noted the wages are not increasing at the same rate as housing costs are rising. She
highlighted that in St. Lucie County 58% of the workforce are in industries with an average
wage of less than $24 an hour. Ms. Heidt said that almost all essential workers, except
registered nurses, are spending over 30% of their income on housing costs. Ms. Heidt
explained how expensive housing impacts the community, and the community's health, due to
not eating healthy foods. She showed different types of affordable housing, and she said itis a
myth that affordable housing decreases property values. Ms Heidt said the aesthetics
required actually increase property values and higher density can provide cost savings. She
said there is improved educational advancement for children because they are not displaced,
and vibrant communities and neighborhoods provide cohesion. Ms. Heidt also stated that
another myth is that affordable housing increases crime. She said homeownership adds
stability in the neighborhood, and it is easier to retain workers in jobs. Ms. Heidt reviewed the

100 NORTH US 1, FORT PIERCE, FLORIDA 34950 < CITYOFFORTPIERCE.COM « TEL: 772.467.3000 « FAX: 772.466.5808



Minutes of Fort Pierce Planning Board - October 13, 2025

Page 3

state and county housing programs and services, and she explained what the local
government can and can't do. She said the city could advocate at higher levels to get more
programs, continue investments in housing solutions and partner with private investors to
invest in more mixed-income housing. Ms. Heidt concluded with the 2024 housing plan and
the proposed housing plan strategies for Fort Pierce.

Ms. Heidt answered questions from the Board about additional dwelling units (ADU) being
implemented into the comprehensive plan, and the deficit in lower-income housing units. Chair
Kreisl asked Ms. Heidt to come back to the Planning Board with very specific
recommendations regarding the city's zoning code. He said the city is lacking incentive
programs, a streamlined process and a definition for ADUs.

PZANN2025-00004
Annexation

Goose Development

Parcel ID: 2434-501-0004-000-5

Ms. Driver stated the annexation was initially presented at the September 8, 2025, Planning
Board meeting. During the meeting, the applicant was advised to consider proposing a future
land use and zoning compatible with the current St. Lucie County future land use and zoning.
Ms. Driver stated the request is for a voluntary annexation of one (1) parcel of land,
approximately 2.03 acres at or near the intersection of E. Market Avenue and S. US Highway 1
with a current taxable value of $34,991. She showed the existing and proposed future land use
and zoning and said the proposed future land use is, GC, General Commercial and the
proposed zoning is C-3, General Commercial. She said the future land use comparison chart
shows an increase in residential units to 30 units per acre.

Chair Kreisl noted the application was tabled at the September 8, 2025, Planning Board
meeting because the Planning Board had concerns about the future land use and the change
in zoning to Planned Development not going through in the future. The Board also did not like
the idea of residential units on US Highway 1.

Mr. Johnson asked the difference between a commercial or residential common zoning
designation at the entrance of a community.

Sebastian Reina, applicant representative from the Keith Team, gave a presentation to the
Board. He said they will be applying for a rezoning to Planned Development (PD) in the future,
which will be mostly residential. The entrance on the annexed parcel will have some
residential space and will be more compatible with parcels on US Highway 1. Mr. Reina said
annexing the parcel will be closer to removing an enclave and is consistent with surrounding
uses.

Ms. Carter stated she had concerns about the entrance being residential.

Motion was made by Ryan Collins, and seconded by Nichelle Clemons to forward the
proposed annexation of Parcel ID: 2434-501-0005-000-4 for approval to the City Commission
with the proposed city Future Land Use designation of General Commercial (GC) and zoning
classification of General Commercial (C-3).

AYE: Justine Carter, Alexander Edwards, Ryan Collins, Clayton Johnson, Nichelle Clemons,
Christopher Widing, Chair Anton Kreisl|

Passed

100 NORTH US 1, FORT PIERCE, FLORIDA 34950 < CITYOFFORTPIERCE.COM « TEL: 772.467.3000 « FAX: 772.466.5808



Minutes of Fort Pierce Planning Board - October 13, 2025

Page 4
d.

PZANN2025-00005
Annexation - Skylark Drive
Parcel ID: 2427-702-0115-000-1

Mr. Gilmore stated the application is for an annexation of one (1) parcel into the city, with a
city Future Land Use of RM, Medium-Density Residential, and a city zoning of R-4,
Medium-Density Residential at or near 906 Skylark Drive. He said the applicant is requesting
the annexation of the approximate 0.23 acres to develop a residential duplex. He stated the
subject property has a St. Lucie County Future Land Use Designation of RH, Residential High,
and a St. Lucie County Zoning designation of RM-11, Residential, Multiple-Family —
11/dwelling units. Mr. Gilmore stated the current taxable value of the property is approximately
$45,540 and the annexation will help infill the existing enclave. He said the future land use
comparison for maximum build out potential shows a decrease in one (1) residential unit.

No one spoke for or against the annexation.

Motion was made by Nichelle Clemons, and seconded by Justine Carter to forward a
recommendation of approval of the annexation of Parcel ID: 2427-702-0115-000-1 to the City
Commission.

AYE: Alexander Edwards, Ryan Collins, Clayton Johnson, Nichelle Clemons, Christopher
Widing, Justine Carter, Chair Anton Kreisl

Passed

PD2024-00002

Final Planned Development (Updated Proposal)
Sunrise Lakes PD - Final Site Plan

Parcel ID: 2433-123-0001-000-1

Mr. Suneson stated the revised application is proposing a rezoning to a Final Planned
Development (PD) of forty-eight (48) single-family residences on 11.54 acres (4.16 units per
acre), at 3804 Sunrise Boulevard. The property is zoned R-1 (less than 4 units/acre) with a
future land use of RL (6.5 units/acre). The site was recently annexed into the City of Ft.
Pierce.

He said the site is bordered by single-family RS-3 zoning on the south and west. To the north
is a cemetery and to the east is a Florida Department of Transportation building, both with
industrial zoning. Mr. Suneson said the existing future land use is low density and will not
change.

Mr. Suneson stated at the September 6, Planning Board meeting, the Board

recommended disapproval of the Sunrise Lakes Final PD, by a vote of 6-1, by reason of lack
of a school bus turn-a-round and stop within the development and the number of dwellings
(50). The revised proposal includes a school bus turn-a-round and stop within the
development, a sidewalk along the frontage of the property on Sunrise Boulevard to the
intersection of Bell Ave, and a reduction in dwelling units to 48.

Blaine Bergstressor, applicant representative from KMA Engineering, showed the updated site
plan with revisions. He said they are also adding parking spaces for parents at the bus stop
location. Mr. Bergstressor read the purpose of a Planned Development from the city code. He
said the project will have a variety of natural features and scenic areas, including ponds, a
bioswale, and a walking path with a variety of trees. He noted 57 trees will be preserved, and
228 palms are being relocated elsewhere on the project. Mr. Bergstressor said all the lots are
being pushed to the north to create a 36-foot buffer from the parcel to the south. He showed

100 NORTH US 1, FORT PIERCE, FLORIDA 34950 < CITYOFFORTPIERCE.COM « TEL: 772.467.3000 « FAX: 772.466.5808



Minutes of Fort Pierce Planning Board - October 13, 2025

Page 5

the improved amenities, including a dog park, tot lot, pool and clubhouse. He showed the new
bus stop, and he explained the bus would come off of Sunrise Boulevard and make a loop into
the development and exit on to Sunrise Boulevard. Mr. Bergstressor said they are

protecting adjacent and existing development with a 20-foot drainage easement, a 16-foot
increased landscape buffer and a15-foot rear yard setback. He noted there will be 51 feet
between the closest house in the project and the southern property line. He showed the typical
buffer and renderings of the landscape buffer, which includes 3 foot tall hedges, 12 foot tall
understory trees and a variety of layered trees. Mr. Bergstressor said the added benefits to the
community are 1,031 linear feet of additional sidewalk to Bell Avenue and 1,290 liner feet of
4-inch force main. He highlighted that other residences in the community can use the sidewalk
and the school bus shelter can be utilized by children that don't live in the development.

Joe Scionti, owner and principal of Integrity 1st Construction Group, stated he is not a national
builder and he does not build cheap homes. He stated he is giving the best a builder can give
by providing a bus stop shelter, sidewalk, pool, and increased landscape buffer. He said he is
going above and beyond. Mr. Scionti said the homes will have metal roofs, impact windows,
and porcelain tile. Mr. Scionti said he has made all the concessions that were asked for, and
he wants to provide a good project for the neighborhood. He noted the school board likes the
bus stop location.

Ms. Fogarty, from the St. Lucie County School Board, said the turnaround radius for the bus
needs to be 80 to 100 feet. She said she would need to see the appropriate turning radius, and
she suggested that this be a condition of approval.

Mr. Suneson noted that two citizen letters regarding the project were received by the Planning
department and given to the Planning Board members.

Ronna Perry, citizen, said she opposes the rezoning due to the number of dwelling units,
threatened endangered species, inadequate infrastructure, drainage issues, traffic concerns,
overcrowded schools and the project does not meet the character of the surrounding
community.

Ms. Carter stated that the improvements are great, but density is a concern. She asked if the
project would set a precedent for future land use.

Mr. Collins stated the density is high, but there are a lot of good improvements, and it is a
good product.

Mr. Suneson noted that the future land use of the property allows for a density of up to 6.5
units per acre. The 4.16 units per acre proposed is relatively lower than what it could be.

Chair Kreisl said the concept of a Planned Development is the cost/benefit to the community.
He noted the Board has been more demanding and makes sure the community is getting
value. He said the applicant listened to what the Board said, and the community is getting a
much better project than what was originally proposed.

Mr. Widing said the number of lots didn't really reduce. He said the bus stop location is safer,
but he feels the three (3) parent parking spaces are a little snug. Mr. Widing said the sidewalk
is a plus and it is a nice community.

100 NORTH US 1, FORT PIERCE, FLORIDA 34950 < CITYOFFORTPIERCE.COM « TEL: 772.467.3000 « FAX: 772.466.5808



Minutes of Fort Pierce Planning Board - October 13, 2025

Page 6

Motion was made by Nichelle Clemons, and seconded by Alexander Edwards to forward a
recommendation of approval of the Final Planned Development for Sunrise Lakes Parcel ID:

2433-

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

AYE:

123-0001-000-1 to the City Commission subject to the following 13 conditions:

All infrastructure, including the private lift station, force main along Sunrise Boulevard,
school district sheltered bus stop, stormwater system, and sidewalk connecting the
project to Bell Ave along Sunrise Boulevard, shall be completed prior to the issuance of
first certificate of occupancy for a residential dwelling.

. A plat of the property shall be required prior to application for a building permit for a

residential building.

. The minimum Open Space shall be maintained at a minimum of 23% of the Final PD site

area.

. The development shall comply with the permitted density, intensity and residential lot

and building heights as outlined within the approved Sunrise Lakes Development
Agreement and Final PD site plan.

. A detailed stormwater and drainage plan and statement shall be submitted at the time of

Building Permit.

. The existing drainage ditch on the south property line shall be regraded and a 20’

drainage easement shall be recorded over the ditch prior to completion of site work. The
easement shall include maintenance responsibilities for the homeowner’s association
and access for the City of Ft. Pierce and South Florida Water Management District.

. A masonry wall, minimum height of 6ft, shall be installed along the eastern property line

as part of the landscape buffer to the industrial use, prior to the first certificate of
occupancy for a residential dwelling.

. The Final PD Site Plan hereby approved shall be governed by all agreements,

provisions and covenants which govern the use, maintenance, and continued protection
of the planned development and any of its common open space or other shared areas.
This shall include the binding of successors in title to any commitments concerning
completion of the project and its maintenance and operation.

. A tree mitigation calculation shall be submitted and approved prior to issuance of a site

clearing or vegetation removal permit.

A landscape maintenance agreement shall be required prior to issuance of the final
certificate of occupation.

A revised final site plan, architectural elevations and landscaping plan shall be submitted
for the proposed amenity center.

All applicable state or federal permits shall be obtained before commencement of the
development.

The bus stop turning radius shall be approved by the St. Lucie County School Board.

Ryan Collins, Clayton Johnson, Nichelle Clemons, Alexander Edwards, Chair Anton
Kreisl

NAY: Christopher Widing, Justine Carter
Passed

f. PD2024-00007
Master Planned Development (Updated Proposal)
Pulte-Cornerstone PD

2721

S. Jenkins Road

Mr. Gilmore stated on August 11, 2025, the Planning Board recommended approval of the
proposed Master Planned Development with fourteen (14) conditions. He said the applicant
has since resubmitted and recommended amendments to the conditions and a new phasing
plan with a new bus stop location. Mr. Gilmore said the application is for two (2) parcels of
land to change the zoning classification from General Commercial (C-3) to Planned

100 NORTH US 1, FORT PIERCE, FLORIDA 34950 < CITYOFFORTPIERCE.COM « TEL: 772.467.3000 « FAX: 772.466.5808



Minutes of Fort Pierce Planning Board - October 13, 2025

Page 7

Development (PD) with an associated Master Development Plan. Mr. Gilmore said the site
area is approximately 49.92 acres. The application proposes a 250-unit,

fee-simple, single-family residential master planned development community. Mr. Gilmore said
there will be a range of home sizes and designs, and amenities such as a linear park
connecting the recreational area to a pocket park. He noted there will also be an additional
buffer for the neighborhood from [-95 and at the southwest corner of the property a sculptural
art installation is proposed. Mr. Gilmore said the project will be developed in two (2) phases.
He discussed the Planning Board concerns from the August 11, 2025, meeting, and he
showed the proposed master site plan phasing changes with the new bus stop location. Mr.
Gilmore reviewed the PD benefits, traffic analysis, and landscaping.

Leslie Olson, principal of the District Planning Group, gave an update on the project process.
She said the Planning Board recommended approval of the Master Planned Development with
conditions at the August 11, 2025, Planning Board meeting. One of the conditions required
design changes to the site plan to reflect the school bus stop’s location within Phase 1 of the
new neighborhood. Ms. Olson explained that because the commercial property's access to the
north is located so close to the intersection, the commercial property is not viable without
access through their site. She said they need a full access intersection, and Pulte/Cornerstone
would be providing that. Ms. Olson showed the new bus stop location and bus route in Phase
I, which she said is also a requirement for the commercial property to the north. Ms. Olson said
the school board said they wanted the bus stop moved caddy corner across the street where
the amenity center would be, and the parents could park. She said the problem with the new
location is it is located in Phase II.

Ms. Olson highlighted that the residential use is projected to generate roughly 88% less traffic
than the previous future land use. She reviewed the site design, amenities and community
features and noted the walking trails will not be going behind people's backyards.

Ms. Olson showed the new phasing plan, which incorporates the new school bus stop
and parking area along with the commercial drive in Phase I.

Ms. Olson stated both she and Mr. Dobbins wanted to talk to the Board about amending the
conditions of approval. She said they had communicated with staff but needed to discuss
further with the Board. Ms. Olson stated they have concerns regarding conditions, 11, 12, 13
and 14. Mr. Lee Dobbins, attorney from Dean Mead Law Firm, spoke about alternate language
for conditions 12 and 14.

Chair Kreisl asked Ms. Fogarty if the bus stop plan, turn radius, and length of travel distance
were acceptable. Ms. Fogarty said yes, and she said she sent a comment to Mr. Gilmore that
the school board would like the bus stop moved to the amenity center and the bus would
utilize the shortest distance to turn in and turn out using the noted side street on the phasing
plan.

Chair Kreisl asked staff if there were any initial concerns regarding the requested revised
conditions. Mr. Suneson said they would discuss the conditions of approval after public
comment.

Nicholas Gieseler, attorney for FP City Shops, representing Ken Simigran, principal of FP City
Shops, and the northern commercial property, stated they are in support of the project. He said
they have some questions about when in Phase | they will have access. Mr. Gieseler said
they have an issue with the proposed revision to condition 14. He said Pulte/Cornerstone are
proposing the revised access agreement would not be necessary until plat approval. He said it
doesn't make sense to wait. He said he doesn't understand how a site plan can be

approved until the access easement is moved, as the easement is currently going right through
someone's kitchen. Mr. Gieseler concluded he would like the condition to be read as it was

100 NORTH US 1, FORT PIERCE, FLORIDA 34950 < CITYOFFORTPIERCE.COM « TEL: 772.467.3000 « FAX: 772.466.5808



Minutes of Fort Pierce Planning Board - October 13, 2025

Page 8

proposed by staff.

Mr. Suneson said the applicant has raised concerns with several conditions of approval that
have been previously reviewed by the applicant's legal counsel, planning staff and the city's
attorney. Staff's opinion is that conditions of approval should be worked out prior to review by
the Board and be relatively unchanged as the project proceeds to the City Commission, except
those conditions initiated by the Planning Board. Staff is open to discussion of the conditions if
the Board would like to entertain it. Mr. Suneson promised the Board that future projects would
not have this type of discussion because conditions of approval would be worked out, if

any, prior to reaching the Planning Board, because that is the way things should be done.

Ms. Carter asked why the Board was not waiting for these conditions to be settled between the
developers and the city.

Chair Kreisl asked staff if their preference would be the negotiations be settled at the staff level
and not at the public hearing.

Mr. Suneson said yes, as a matter of doing day-to-day business, but in this particular
instance, to keep the project moving forward during the review process, he feels a simple
compromise could be achieved.

Ms. Clemons stated she is uncomfortable with the revised conditions because anything being
reviewed today has not been reviewed by the city's legal department.

Mr. Collins asked what the Board was being asked to do and who they were being asked by.
Mr. Collins asked if the Board was supposed to be part of the negotiations on the conditions of
approval. Mr. Suneson said not normally. Mr. Dobbins said that is true, and he prefers that it
be worked out so that they don't have to come back to the Planning Board for a third time.

Chair Kreisl said he shares Ms. Clemons' concerns, and he would only be willing to proceed
with reviewing the conditions if a 15th condition was added that states any changes to the
conditions today would need to be reviewed by the city's legal department. He said it would be
a better idea to know that the conditions would be negotiated and agreed to prior to going to
the Final PD, and if not, the process is to come back to the Planning Board.

Mr. Widing said there are too many moving parts, and he is uncomfortable going forward.

Chair Kreisl asked staff what the Board's options were. Mr. Suneson said either allow the
deliberations or punt. Mr. Suneson stated that a lot of the items the applicant has brought up
are rather minor.

Mr. Suneson said that condition #13 has been raised by the Planning Board as well as the City
Commission and FDOT regarding the sound attenuation with proximity to 1-95. He said he
wants the applicant to have a relatively straightforward and direct understanding of how staff
would like the condition to proceed. He said the condition is quite vague, so staff is offering an
alternative, not for the Board's consideration, but for the applicant. Mr. Suneson said the
following modification is that prior to plat approval, the applicant will conduct a highway noise
study per the FDOT guidelines to determine what if any noise attenuation measures should be
implemented to eliminate the noise in the subdivision. M. Suneson said staff also agrees with
the northern property owner that condition #14 continues to be a condition of the final
development plan approval.

Mr. Dobbins said the easement has to be fixed. He said it is not uncommon to have easements
released after site plan approval. Pulte has to move the easement because it is going through
a bunch of lots. Mr. Dobbins said with the easement that is there now, it states that the

100 NORTH US 1, FORT PIERCE, FLORIDA 34950 < CITYOFFORTPIERCE.COM « TEL: 772.467.3000 « FAX: 772.466.5808



Minutes of Fort Pierce Planning Board - October 13, 2025

Page 9

developer has to build the access road within 365 days after starting site work. He said they
would like the easement release tied to plat approval. Mr. Dobbins said he cannot speak to
condition #13 because he is not a sound engineer, and he has concerns about the sound
study being time-consuming.

Chair Kreisl said he wants a set of conditions that are no longer in dispute, so the Board can
move forward. He said the Board has no choice but to table this item for the next meeting.

Ms. Olson said she wants to know that they can move forward with the Final PD as they work
out the conditions with staff.

Chair Kreisl said it is a possibility, but some details with the Master Planned Development
need to be worked out first.

Motion was made by Nichelle Clemons, and seconded by Christopher Widing to table the item
for the November 10, 2025 Planning Board meeting.

AYE: Clayton Johnson, Nichelle Clemons, Christopher Widing, Justine Carter, Alexander
Edwards, Ryan Collins, Chair Anton Kreisl

Passed

PZSITE2025-00006
Site Plan

Bev Smith Kia

5560 S. US Highway 1

Ms. Driver gave an overview of the application. She stated Bev Smith Kia is seeking approval
to develop a new car showroom and dealership building. The property is in the C-3, General
Commercial zoning district and has a future land use designation of RL, Low Density
Residential. Ms. Driver said the building will be 40,791 square feet with 487 parking spaces,
which includes 284 for car inventory. Ms. Driver showed the elevations and the landscape
plan. She noted the trees required meet the requirements and the shrubs provided exceed the
requirements.

Chair Kreisl asked if the architectural components align with the architectural guidelines for a
car dealership. He stated the architecture on the west elevation, which is visible from US
Highway 1, is flat.

Aaron Stanton, applicant representative from MBV Engineering, said the architecture is
complying with Kia Standards and the city's architecture standards. He noted the building is
25 feet in height, not 45 feet. He said the building sits back from the frontage of US Highway 1
and there will be lots of hedging adjacent to US Highway 1.

Motion was made by Ryan Collins, and seconded by Christopher Widing to forward a
recommendation of approval of the Bev Smith Kia Site Plan located at 5560 S. US Highway 1,
with the following five (5) conditions.
1. Prior to the issuance of any site clearing and demolition permits, the applicant shall provide
a Tree Mitigation Survey and coordinate with the City of Fort Pierce Arborist for the required
mitigation of the City's regulated trees proposed to be removed as a result of its site
development/construction activity. 2. Prior to issuance of the final certificate of occupancy, a
Landscape Maintenance Agreement shall be approved and shall acknowledge the following:
a. All approved landscaping shall be installed, irrigated, and maintained in perpetuity in
accordance with section 123-7 of the City Code of Ordinances, in order that it continues to

100 NORTH US 1, FORT PIERCE, FLORIDA 34950 < CITYOFFORTPIERCE.COM « TEL: 772.467.3000 « FAX: 772.466.5808



Minutes of Fort Pierce Planning Board - October 13, 2025

Page 10

present a healthy, neat, and orderly appearance free of refuse and debris, in conformity with
the following requirements:

i. Vegetation required by this article shall be replaced with equivalent or better vegetation
if it is not living. All trees for which credit is awarded, and which subsequently die shall be
replaced by the same or greater number of living trees according to the standards established
in this article.

ii. Maintenance shall include sufficient weeding, watering, fertilizing, pruning, mowing,
edging, mulching and other horticultural practices to ensure that the landscaping continues to
maintain a healthy, neat, and orderly appearance. 3. NSLRWCD permit will be
required for outfall into Canal No. 17 4. Striping and wheel stops will be required if the Car
Inventory Spaces are later converted to public parking 5. An updated Environmental
Assessment Report is needed prior to DPCR submittal

AYE: Nichelle Clemons, Christopher Widing, Justine Carter, Alexander Edwards, Ryan
Collins, Clayton Johnson, Chair Anton Kreisl

Passed

PZSITE2025-00017

Major Site Plan Amendment
Precast Specialties LLC
3898 Selvitz Road

Mr. Suneson gave an overview of the application. He stated the applicant is requesting
consideration of a phased major site plan amendment. Phase 1 would include the construction
of a batch plant. Phase 2 would include the expansion of an office /workshop with associated
site improvements. Mr. Suneson said the site was originally annexed into the city limits in 2004
with an IH, Heavy Industrial zoning. A rezoning from IH, Industrial Heavy (St. Lucie County
Classification) to 1-3. Heavy Industrial was granted in November 2016. He explained that the
approved project set out to develop a 76,100 square foot precast concrete production facility in
multiple phases, located on the 75-acre parcel, at 3798 Selvitz Road. He noted the concrete
operation has been in business since 2017-2018. Mr. Suneson showed the timetable of
development with a completion at the end of the year in 2030. He noted the expansion of the
roadway will be in Phase 2 and the landscape plan shows a tremendous amount of vegetation
buffering along the property line.

Ms. Clemons asked why there was no building on the timetable of development. Mr. Suneson
said the office/workshop will be completed in Phase 2 and added to the timetable.

Mark Landsman, applicant representative from Haley Ward, stated the batch plant will reduce
truck traffic since they will be manufacturing concrete on site. He noted the enhanced
landscape will be added in Phase 1. In Phase 2, the water main is being extended, which will
provide potable water to the location and will also be a public benefit to those able to connect
to city sewer. Mr. Landsman said the neighbors will not be affected because they are governed
by the Department of Environmental Protection. He noted the wash-down area in Phase 1 will
meet the air quality conditions for the site. Mr. Landsman highlighted that white noise and
restricted hours of operation have been initiated as conditions.

Dean Locke, owner of Precast, said the batch plant is more like a piece of equipment rather
than a building. He explained they will be manufacturing structural products for construction,
utility contractors and underground utility products.

Brad Currie, from Haley Ward, said the batch plan is in the extreme northwest industrial corner
of the property and there will be a landscape buffer along the south property line. He noted
that bringing concrete manufacturing on site instead of 10—12 trucks a day is a significant

100 NORTH US 1, FORT PIERCE, FLORIDA 34950 < CITYOFFORTPIERCE.COM « TEL: 772.467.3000 « FAX: 772.466.5808



Minutes of Fort Pierce Planning Board - October 13, 2025

Page 11

improvement for the community.

Ms. Clemons said dust was a big concern several years ago, and she wants Precast to
maintain a clean environment and bring new jobs to the area.

Mr. Collins said it is a great site plan, and they went above and beyond.

Ms. Carter asked if they would be producing more air pollution with concrete manufacturing on
site.

Chair Kreisl said this is an opportunity for Precast to go through the expansion and site plan
approval process, which compels the applicant to add features to their site while going through
the process of development. He highlighted the applicant can improve the site and the
surrounding community.

Motion was made by Nichelle Clemons, and seconded by Christopher Widing to forward a
recommendation of approval to the City Commission for the Precast Concrete Major Site Plan
Amendment located at 3898 Selvitz Road with the following nine (9) conditions:

1. The timetable of development shall be such:

¢ |PHASE 1 START BY DATE|COMPLETE BY DATE
Batch Plant January 2026 December 2027
Aggregate Bins/Wash Out January 2026 December 2027
Treatment Pond January 2026 December 2027
Dispatch Office/3 Parking Spaces|January 2026 December 2027
Landscaping/Wall January 2026 December 2027

¢ |PHASE 2 START BY DATE.COMPLETE BY DATE
Parking Lots and Lighting January 2028 December 2030
Drainage Infrastructure January 2028 December 2030
Water Main Extension/Hydrant |January 2028 December 2030
Grinder Station/Force Main January 2028 December 2030
Removal of Temporary Trailers|January 2028 December 2030

2. A full calculation and proposed tree mitigation shall be approved by the city arborist prior
to commencement of Phase 1.

3. The property owner shall be responsible for maintenance of the trees through a
landscape maintenance agreement. This responsibility includes the replacement of
unhealthy and dead trees. The property owner shall submit to an on-site inspection of
the planted/preserved vegetation 12 months after the issuance of the Phase 1 first
certificate of occupancy. If it is determined that the planted vegetation is dead, diseased
or otherwise not in compliance with provisions of this Code or the original approved tree
mitigation plan, the property owner shall be provided notice and directed to correct any
such deficiencies and replace all noncompliant materials within 60 days.

. No use shall exceed the applicable City of Fort Pierce standards for noise.

. The hours of operation of the facility shall be limited to: Monday — Friday between 6:30
a.m. to 8 p.m., Saturday — 7 a.m. to 8 p.m., Sunday — No operation. Quiet hours — 11p.m.
to7 a.m.

6. The applicant shall implement the Heavy-Duty White Sound® Smart Reversing System
alarm, or similar, to reduce, as far as practicable, the noise impact of reversing trucks
and other equipment prior to completion of the Batch Plant within Phase 1.

7. Prior to commencement of Phase 1, the applicant shall coordinate the approval of an
Erosion and Sediment Control Plan with the City Engineer. The Plan shall relate to the
sequence of construction of the development site, including stripping and clearing; rough
grading; construction of utilities, infrastructure, and buildings; and final grading and

(S0

100 NORTH US 1, FORT PIERCE, FLORIDA 34950 < CITYOFFORTPIERCE.COM « TEL: 772.467.3000 « FAX: 772.466.5808



Minutes of Fort Pierce Planning Board - October 13, 2025

Page 12

landscaping. Sequencing shall identify the expected date on which clearing will begin,
the estimated duration of exposure of cleared areas, areas of clearing, installation of
temporary erosion and sediment control measures, and establishment of permanent
vegetation. All erosion and sediment control measures necessary to meet the objectives
of the city code of ordinances shall be maintained and in place throughout all phases of
construction and after completion of development of the site.

8. All applicable State and Federal permits shall be obtained before commencement of the
development.

9. Add the addition of the office/workshop to Phase 2 timetable of development.

AYE: Christopher Widing, Justine Carter, Alexander Edwards, Ryan Collins, Clayton
Johnson, Nichelle Clemons, Chair Anton Kreisl

Passed

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC

James Clasby, St. Lucie County Commissioner, thanked the Planning Board members for their
service to the community and what they do for the city.

BOARD COMMENTS

Mr. Johnson asked about creating overlay districts to determine what the city wants in White
City, downtown, the beaches and Hibiscus Park. Mr. Suneson said density can be addressed
in the comprehensive plan update. He suggested that board members reach out to Ms Heidt
with their concerns. Mr. Suneson said overlay districts may not be the way to go. He
suggested a zoning change to E1 or E2, which has 1 or 2 dwelling units per acre. Mr.
Suneson encouraged the Board to look at the zoning district details to know what is viable.

Mr. Johnson asked how it works when the city takes over a road because of annexations. Mr.
Suneson said there are questions that need to be asked by the Engineering and Public Works
department to make sure the road is within the city and is up to city standards. Mr. Johnson
said the city should be looking at the cost of servicing roadways before annexing property.
Chair Kreisl said Ms. Heidt's presentation on the comprehensive plan update mentioned the
cost of adding roads and services when annexing property.

Chair Kreisl said he was curious if overlay districts are created by staff or the community. He
noted they may not be appropriate anymore because of the new state statutes. Mr. Suneson
said Senate Bill 180 has legitimate concerns. He said cities cannot do anything more
restrictive or burdensome than the code that was in place on August 1, 2024. He said overlay
districts are more restrictive and have special requirements, which is an opportunity to get
more from an applicant, like larger landscape buffers.

ADJOURNMENT

100 NORTH US 1, FORT PIERCE, FLORIDA 34950 < CITYOFFORTPIERCE.COM « TEL: 772.467.3000 « FAX: 772.466.5808



H

Assessment

O e i|4|I|||:|4|r|H4|h=1 H”m wh m‘II lh"*"fﬁmms r
o agon PO Firw s

Fﬂﬂ”f‘"ﬂﬂl' IN § R Wils Wit =

& ’ LU T
ﬂﬂm AR :

This presentation was developed by TPMA, the project consultants, and
provided for educational and outreach purposes.




Difficulty affording housing costs?

SURVEY

NO

60%

YES

All respondents

NO

70%

YES

N Multifamily

NO

807

YES
N rental units




Why Is Housing Getting
More Expensive?

Purchase Price/Rental Rate

Q Mortgage Interest Rates
€ Insurance & Property Taxes

Q Development Costs

Q Supply & Demand




$286

Increase in Effective Rent; 2020-2022

$93,000

Increase in Median Sale Price; 2020-2022

O
FortPir Percent of Households Cost Burdened
Housing Costs

z




Median Sale Price

2022 Real $ in St. Lucie County 2022,
$400,000 $366,800
A4
$350.000
$300,000 J\
250,000
$ S22
$200.000 ' $294.628
$150.000 \/
$100.000

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022




Monthly Rental Costs

Effective Rent Per Unit in St. Lucie County

$1,900
$1,750
$1,600
$1,450
$1,300
$1,150

$1,000

2012,
$1,167

2022,
$1,801

N

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

2020,
$1,515

2022




What is complicating 89
the issue? 417

Deficit in Housing Units for
Households at <60% of AMI (2019)

17 °f 20

Top Occupations earn less than $59,300
(T00% AMI for 1-person household)

o)
In St. Lucie 58 /0

Of workforce in industries with an
County average wage of less than $24/hr.




Essential Workers Affordability

Percent of Monthly Income for Median 1 Bedroom Contract Rent
St. Lucie County

80%
68%
38% 339 40% 40% .
I Io I I ] 1
EMTsand  Firefighters  First Year Home Health LPNsand Police Registered Retail
Paramedics Teacher and Personal LVNs Officers Nurses Salespersons
Care Aides

Sources: Lightcast, Florida State Teacher Salary Standards, CoStar Rental Data




Expensive Housing Impacts the Community

Q Cost of living

Q Health

& ~obility tofill jobs
Q Business expansion/attraction

Q Risk of increased homelessness




Housing Mix.

What could different types of
affordable housing look like?




L3

18

RN
>
o\










Affordable housing decreases property values.

Increased Economic Vibrant
Property Values Benefit Communities
- Can lead to slight - Less cost-burden = - Can foster sense of
increase in more opportunity to ~community and
oroperty values contribute to economy | |N€ighborhood conhesion
- Adds to aesthetics: and build wealth -Physical and mental
85% meet/exceed - Higher density can health benefits
federal quality provide cost savings, -Improved educational
standards Detter access advancement

1" Effectsof Fow-lreceome Housihg on Property . Values
2 What Does Affordable Housing Do to Nearby Property Values?



https://www.nar.realtor/effects-of-low-income-housing-on-property-values#:%7E:text=Impacts%20of%20Low%2DIncome%20Housing%20on%20Neighboring%20Properties&text=%E2%80%9CA%20new%20peer%2Dreviewed%20study,in%20fact%20increase%20their%20worth.
https://www.nar.realtor/effects-of-low-income-housing-on-property-values#:%7E:text=Impacts%20of%20Low%2DIncome%20Housing%20on%20Neighboring%20Properties&text=%E2%80%9CA%20new%20peer%2Dreviewed%20study,in%20fact%20increase%20their%20worth.
https://www.nar.realtor/effects-of-low-income-housing-on-property-values#:%7E:text=Impacts%20of%20Low%2DIncome%20Housing%20on%20Neighboring%20Properties&text=%E2%80%9CA%20new%20peer%2Dreviewed%20study,in%20fact%20increase%20their%20worth.
https://www.nar.realtor/effects-of-low-income-housing-on-property-values#:%7E:text=Impacts%20of%20Low%2DIncome%20Housing%20on%20Neighboring%20Properties&text=%E2%80%9CA%20new%20peer%2Dreviewed%20study,in%20fact%20increase%20their%20worth.
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2022-05-02/does-affordable-housing-lower-property-values

Affordable housing increases crime.

Less crime, Population Breaking
more cohesion Stability Stereotypes
- Homeownership - Maintain a stable - People needing
can add stability, population by making affordable housing live
lower crime rates, It easier to retain and work here
and build residents and workers ~ Households earning
neighborhood - Homeownership can lower income have
conhesions add stability variety of backgrounds

% ohttes /R0 S c2prrEa N conn site s BieFe e/ dist/5Z=537 files/2021/ 0%/ SS 2N mp e s ttle Lot



https://cpb-us-e2.wpmucdn.com/sites.uci.edu/dist/5/4337/files/2021/03/LCL-22-Impact-Study.pdf
https://cpb-us-e2.wpmucdn.com/sites.uci.edu/dist/5/4337/files/2021/03/LCL-22-Impact-Study.pdf
https://cpb-us-e2.wpmucdn.com/sites.uci.edu/dist/5/4337/files/2021/03/LCL-22-Impact-Study.pdf
https://cpb-us-e2.wpmucdn.com/sites.uci.edu/dist/5/4337/files/2021/03/LCL-22-Impact-Study.pdf
https://cpb-us-e2.wpmucdn.com/sites.uci.edu/dist/5/4337/files/2021/03/LCL-22-Impact-Study.pdf
https://cpb-us-e2.wpmucdn.com/sites.uci.edu/dist/5/4337/files/2021/03/LCL-22-Impact-Study.pdf
https://cpb-us-e2.wpmucdn.com/sites.uci.edu/dist/5/4337/files/2021/03/LCL-22-Impact-Study.pdf
https://cpb-us-e2.wpmucdn.com/sites.uci.edu/dist/5/4337/files/2021/03/LCL-22-Impact-Study.pdf
https://cpb-us-e2.wpmucdn.com/sites.uci.edu/dist/5/4337/files/2021/03/LCL-22-Impact-Study.pdf
https://cpb-us-e2.wpmucdn.com/sites.uci.edu/dist/5/4337/files/2021/03/LCL-22-Impact-Study.pdf
https://cpb-us-e2.wpmucdn.com/sites.uci.edu/dist/5/4337/files/2021/03/LCL-22-Impact-Study.pdf

Programs and Services

HOME Investment Partnership Program (from HUD)

State Housing Initiatives Partnership (SHIP)

Family Self-Sufficiency Program (from HUD)
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)

St. Lucie County and Habitat for Humanity Partnership

Housing Rehabilitation Assistance




What local government can do:

Advocate at the local, county, state, and federal levels to
mMeet |ocal resident needs for more affordable housing.

Continue investments in housing solutions.

Partner with (or incentivize) the private sector to invest in
more mixed-income housing to meet demand while
understanding the need for return on investment

Seek out philanthropic support to help make economic
stability and homeownership achievable.

Adjust zoning and policy to facilitate private
developments.




What local government can’t do:

Regulate Determine Control Construct
Population Insurance assessed housing
Growth rates home value units




Private Sector Support

Q Employee Support

Q Wages

Q Public/Private Partnerships

Q Advocacy

Q INnvest in or Build Housing




The Plan and Projected Impacts

Q INncrease housing supply
Q Diversity housing mix

Q INncrease affordability



Proposed Strategies (Fort Pierce)

Expand redevelopment, transit-oriented, and mixed-use
districts.

Create and maintain affordable housing preservation
inventory and districts.

Require and/or incentivize creating affordable homes in
new developments

-xplore possibilities for accessory dwelling units (ADUSs).

Explore options for community land trust models and
oublicly-owned lanad.

-xpand dedicated housing staff and resources.




Thank You

Attribution

Special thanks to the following sources for making resources available for this presentation.

Florida Community Loan Fund (Flickr)

Flickr Profile: https://www.flickr.com/photos/fclf/with/51342497575
License: https//creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc/2.0/

Pixabay.com
https://picryl.com/media/home-little-house-motor-coach-architecture-buildings-85404a
License: https//creativecommons.ora/publicdomain/mark/1.0/

City of St. Pete
Flickr Profile: https://flickr.com/photos/cityofstpete/
License: https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nd/2.0/

This presentation was developed by TPMA, the project consultants, and provided
for educational and outreach purposes.



https://www.flickr.com/photos/fclf/with/51342497575
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc/2.0/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc/2.0/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc/2.0/
https://www.flickr.com/photos/fclf/with/51342497575
https://creativecommons.org/

CiTY OF FORT PIERCE

PLANNING DEPARTMENT

PROJECT: SKYLARK DRIVE VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION - PROJECT #: PZANN2025-00005

REVIEWER: VENNIS GILMORE, HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER/SENIOR PLANNER

DATE: OCTOBER 6, 2025
STAFF REPORT

Owner/Applicant: Bernard Jones, Round Hill Development Group, Inc.

Requested Action: Review of an application for the annexation of one (1) parcel into the City,
with a City Future Land Use of RM, Medium Density Residential, and a
City Zoning of R-4, Medium-Density Residential Zone.

Location: At or near 906 Skylark Drive

Parcel IDs: 2427-702-0115-000-1

Current SLC Zoning: RM-11, Residential, Multiple-Family - 11/du

Proposed Zoning: R-4, Medium-Density Residential Zone

Current SLC Future Land Use: RH, Residential High

Proposed Future Land Use: RM, Medium-Density Residential

100N.US.1 o P.O.Box 1480 o Forr Pierce, FL 34954 -1480 o 772-467-3000 o Fax772-466-5808

WWW.CITYOFFORTPIERCE.COM



Ocroser 6, 2025
Pace 2

Location Map:

P.O.Box 1480 ¢ Fort PErce, FL 34954-1480 « 772-467-3000



Ocroser 6, 2025
Pacte 3

Future Land Use City Map:

P.O.Box 1480 o Forrt PiErce, FL 34954-1480 o 772-467-3000



Ocroser 6, 2025

Pace 4

City Zoning Map:

Surrounding Zoning:

Surrounding Future Land Use:

Site Area:

Utilities:

North East South West
R-4 (FP) RM-11 (SLC) R-4 (FP) R-4 (FP)

North East South West
RM (FP) RH (SLC) RM (FP) RM (FP)

+/-0.23 Acres

Located within the FPUA Service Area

P.O.Box 1480 o Forrt PiErce, FL 34954-1480 o 772-467-3000



Ocroser 6, 2025
Pace 5

Staff Analysis

Request for review of an application for the annexation of (1) parcel into the City, with a City Future Land Use
Designation of RM, Medium-Density Residential, and a City Zoning of R-4, Medium-Density Residential Zone.

The subject property has a St. Lucie County Future Land Use Designation of RH, Residential High, and a St. Lucie
County Zoning designation of RM-11, Residential, Multiple-Family - 11/du. To ensure consistency with Policy
1.11.5 of the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the proposed Future Land Use Designation for the parcels is RM, Medium-
Density Residential, with a Zoning Classification of R-4, Medium-Density Residential Zone.

Pursuant to Comprehensive Plan policy 1.11.5 “properties annexed shall receive a land use designation
compatible with the County land use designation, unless otherwise approved by the City Commission.” Staff has
confirmed that the properties are located within unincorporated St. Lucie County and is contiguous to the Fort
Pierce City municipal boundary and within the FPUA service area. The proposed voluntary annexation is also
consistent with Chapter 171.044, F.S., whereas the property is contiguous to a municipality and reasonably
compact; and the annexation will not result in the creation of an enclave.

The current taxable value of the property is approximately $45,540. Should the Application for Annexation be
approved, and future development of the land occurs, the property could create a new source of ad-valorem tax
revenue annually to the City of Fort Pierce, depending on the millage rate per year, which currently is 6.9000.

Existing Conditions
Currently, the land is vacant.

Stormwater Retention & Landscaping
Stormwater retention, drainage, and landscaping requirements are to be met when permits are submitted for
building on the parcel.

Comprehensive Plan
Staff has reviewed the Comprehensive Plan and finds the proposed annexation is consistent with the following

Objectives and Policies:

Objective 1.11 of the Comprehensive Plan: “Annex properties within the Fort Pierce Utilities Authority Boundary
in an orderly manner that promotes efficiency of public service provision and economic vitality of the City.”

The properties are within the FPUA service boundary. Policy, 1.11.1 of the City Comprehensive Plan: “The City
shall evaluate proposed annexations within the urban service boundary based upon the following criteria:

1. The ability of the City to provide public services at a level equal to or better than that available from the current
service providers;

2. The ability of the City to provide public services at the City’s adopted levels of service;

3. Whether the annexation would eliminate an unincorporated island or could be expanded to eliminate an
unincorporated island; and

4. Whether the annexation would eliminate an irregularity or irregularities in the City’s boundaries, thereby
improving service delivery.”

P.O.Box 1480 o Fort PiErce, FL 34954-1480 o 772-467-3000



Ocroser 6, 2025
Pace 6

The subject property will be designated as a City Future Land Use of Medium-Density Residential. The Medium-
Density Residential (RM) designation is intended for parcels that are best suited for multifamily residential uses
ranging in density from six and one-half to 12 dwelling units per acre. This category allows small-lot single family
units and multifamily dwellings including duplexes, condominiums and townhomes. Limited commercial uses
intended to serve the residential uses shall be allowed. Compatible public, quasi-public, and special uses including
parks, churches, non-profit clubs, schools and daycare facilities shall also be allowed. This category combines the
previously allowed Medium Density Residential (Rme) and Moderate Density Residential (Rmo) categories.

The subject property will be classified with a City Zoning of R-4, Medium-Density Residential Zone. This
classification is designed to accommodate a variety of housing types, including conventional single-family
dwellings, duplexes and, where desirable, townhome dwellings, mobile homes or multifamily housing with three
or more dwelling units. Maximum gross densities should generally not exceed ten units per acre for conventional
developments and 12 units per acre for innovative residential developments. This intensity of residential use is
envisioned for locations which have public water and sewer service and which have adequate access to arterial or
collector streets. Certain nonresidential uses are permitted under the parameters and safeguards set forth in this
section.

Summary of Technical Review Committee

All affected departments have reviewed the proposed Annexation with regards to consistency with established
ordinances and requirements of the City Code. The Technical Review Committee reviewed this project, and all
departments supported the annexation.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends that the Planning Board recommend approval of the proposed Annexation to the City
Commission.

P.O.Box 1480 o Fort PiErce, FL 34954-1480 o 772-467-3000



October 13, 2025 Planning and Zoning Meeting

Revised notes Opposing Zoning Change 3804 Sunrise Blvd/ Sunrise Lakes PD
September 7,2025

To: City Of Fort Pierce Planning and Zoning Board

Re: 3804 Sunrise Blvd Development Proposal

Dear Members of the Board,

| am writing to express my objection to the 3804 Sunrise Blvd. Zoning change request from R1/RL to PD .The proposed PD is a typical “Cookie
Cutter” neighborhood. White City is quaint historic community know for its generous lot sizes, lush vegetation and beautiful Oak trees., the
proposal does not fit in with the character and rural lifestyle of our community.

As previously state the updated proposed PD does not fit in with the unique character of this historic community. Preservation of the protected
Oak trees in our neighborhoods remains a priority. To keep our area unique and separate it from Cookie Cutter neighborhoods seen throughout
Port St. Lucie, the trees should be preserved and homes situated around the protected trees whenever possible.

As seen on the applicants web page ( sunriselakesluxury.com ) this is a beautiful parcel of land with many large oak trees. Our trees make our
neighborhood and City valuable, unique , and desirable when compared to the landscape typical of Port St. Lucie. The plan appears to retain
only those Oak trees on the edges of the property. | urge you to recommend saving as many of the “Protected Oak Trees” on the interior of the
property as possible.

The new proposal eliminates 2 units, assumably to accommodate the bus loop, however the PD still has the lot sizes far below the R-1 existing
minimum lot size, and those in existing neighborhoods. Typically single family residential homeowners prefer to have large lots allowing for
private swimming pools and play areas for children. Amenities such as playgrounds and swimming pools are more common in Townhome or
Apartment communities.

The residential homes in proximity to the site are mostly Estate Sized lots. Growth in our area should match the existing larger lots and unique

single family homes. A density of 1/2 to 1/4 acres lot sizes would be acceptable in my personal opinion.

Comparisons to nearby developments :
Wilderness Drive - 26 homes on about 18 ac
Estates of Longwood - 48 homes on about 27 ac

The proposed PD will produce an Increased density of at least 2.4 times the number of allowed dwellings for the current zoning of R1 to the
proposed PD if not more when all of the setbacks and other infrastructure required is calculated into the project.

R1 Proposed PD
Minimum lot size 12,000 SQ FT Lot size 4,920 SQ FT
Min lot width. 75FT Lot width. 60 FT
Min lot depth 110 FT Lot depth. 70 FT
Density (FL). 6.5 is not achievable Density is listed as both 4.33 and 4.41 Project Description
With lot size requirements: by KMA Engineering & Surveying, LLC in the application documents.

Parcel SF 493,970.4 / Lot min. 12,000 = 41.16
Without any setbacks, right of ways, roads

Actual number of allowed homes would probably be
Half of the proposed PD for 50 homes

Conflicting information provided on the actual size of the property and current zoning/ future land use :

Property Apprisers record card provided the the documents shows the Parcel is 11.34 acres or 493,970.4 SF
The Applicants documents show the parcel is 11.54 acres or 502682 SF
The applicants calculated SF results in 8,711.6 more SF than the property appraiser records.

The current zoning information below appears to be corrected in the new presentation.

Property Zoning is R-1/ Future land use is RL
Applicants site plan shows the zoning incorrectly as RS-3, and previously listed the property incorrectly as RM when it is actually RL.

Traffic still remains a major concern for our area. The new proposal of a bus loop is a noted improvement.


http://sunriselakesluxury.com

Traffic Concerns are a major problem in our community. Roads in this area are over burdened with traffic, resulting in numerous accidents
in our residential neighborhoods, making it very dangerous for motorists and pedestrians. Physical condition of the roads are poor, most have
potholes or patches for temporary repairs. We are also laking sidewalks in most of our community.

Stormwater and road conditions are still a major problem in the White City area.

Flooding, Water Quality of our River, and Sub-standard Roads. The White City area as a whole has poor drainage and flooding issues.
Many of the canals and drainage ditches are either failing or inadequate. Outfall from the massive amount of new developments in the area
eventually ends up in our river which in turn causes, poor water quality and flooding.

As a community we rely on our City Staff to protect the interest of the existing stakeholders in our neighborhoods. | urge you to disapproved
the proposed zoning change for 3804 Sunrise Blvd due to loss of protected tress, lack of common characteristics with the Unique White City
area, sub-standard roadways, drainage and flooding issues. Thank you for your continued service and support of our community.

Best regards,

Debra Johns

909 W Weatherbee Rd.
Fort Pierce, FL 34982



From: judy sunrisecityrealty.com

To: Alicia Rosenthal

Subject: Sunrise Lakes

Date: Sunday, October 12, 2025 10:42:56 PM
City of Fort Pierce

Warning: Sender judy@sunrisecityrealty.com is not yet trusted by your organization.
Please be careful before replying or clicking on the URLs.

This is UNSAFE: Report This is SAFE
powered by Graphus®

You don't often get email from judy@sunrisecityrealty.com. Learn why this is important

SECURITY WARNING: This email has been generated from external sources and is not
affiliated with the City of Fort Pierce systems. Exercise caution while clicking on links or
opening attachments. If you have any questions or concerns, please reach out to the IT
department promptly.

October 12, 2025

Planning Dept. of St. Lucie County

Dear Planning Board Members,

My name is Judy Biglin and I am a resident of White City. I
have lived at 3950 Sunrise Blvd. for 28 years. I attended and
spoke at the Commissioners meeting on July 215 regarding the
proposed Sunrise Lakes PUD. I was so grateful when they did
not approve the zoning change at that time. I have just returned
from a long trip and have been told that the developer has
made a few minor changes to his plan. I think he cut 2 homes
from his original plan. Not nearly enough in my mind. I still
cannot understand how anyone familiar with the Historic
White City area would think that this 1s a good idea. With 48
homes and more than likely 2 vehicles per household
minimum, I cannot imagine how 96 more vehicles on this

small country road will be viable. There have already been


mailto:judy@sunrisecityrealty.com
mailto:arosenthal@cityoffortpierce.com
https://cloud.graph.us/feedback?msgId=PExWM1AyMjJNQjA3NTdFQUVERTFFRDYyOUNDRTc4QzI4N0MyRUFBQExWM1AyMjJNQjA3NTcuTkFNUDIyMi5QUk9ELk9VVExPT0suQ09NPg%3D%3D&orgDomain=Y2l0eW9mZm9ydHBpZXJjZS5jb20%3D&opt=unsafe
https://cloud.graph.us/feedback?msgId=PExWM1AyMjJNQjA3NTdFQUVERTFFRDYyOUNDRTc4QzI4N0MyRUFBQExWM1AyMjJNQjA3NTcuTkFNUDIyMi5QUk9ELk9VVExPT0suQ09NPg%3D%3D&orgDomain=Y2l0eW9mZm9ydHBpZXJjZS5jb20%3D&sndr=aTcrbVZNczZSalE4K0NMRVhrSGpTTjdVT2wycGV2Qis1VTJKeE0yVWVETXhVRkF0TVZ3VkxBPT0%3D&rcpnt=N2ZabXQ1Wmk5N3QydXRGdEQvU25kQ1RYZmZLV0gvV3lRWDdDSWhRRkw4T2htNGhzMkR2QzdBPT0%3D&opt=spam
https://cloud.graph.us/feedback?msgId=PExWM1AyMjJNQjA3NTdFQUVERTFFRDYyOUNDRTc4QzI4N0MyRUFBQExWM1AyMjJNQjA3NTcuTkFNUDIyMi5QUk9ELk9VVExPT0suQ09NPg%3D%3D&orgDomain=Y2l0eW9mZm9ydHBpZXJjZS5jb20%3D&opt=safe
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification

numerous wrecks and deaths on this road. My mailbox has
been taken out more times than I can remember. Last year |
was driving home and a 6 foot alligator was walking down
Sunrise in the ditch right in front of the proposed development.
This area still has a lot of wildlife. We have Bobcat, alligators,
coyotes, wild hogs, foxes, racoons, possums, etc. White City is
a unique, historic area and that should not be compromised by
a developer who I’m sure had time to do his due diligence and
knew the zoning and what is allowed and be given preference
over us, White City residents who have been working and
paying taxes her for years. I have spoken with a lot of my
neighbors and no one is happy about this.

Additionally, I want to share with you that I am a member of
the St. Lucie County Historical Commission and I feel
passionate about all our historic buildings and areas, not just
White City, my home. Please take the time to drive down
Sunrise Blvd. starting at Midway Road, the hear of White City.
I think you will quickly realize why this zoning change is not a
good fit with the neighborhood.

Thank you for your consideration. I hope you will come to the
right decision for our Historic area.

Sincerely,

Judy Biglin
3950 Sunrise Blvd.
772-216-6661






Sunrise
Lakes




History

Met with Planning Staff in December 2023 to discuss potential townhome located in
unincorporated in St. Lucie County.

Staff suggested single family more appropriate for area
Annexation applied for in February 2024.
Site Plan approval submitted April 2024

PD process in City updated after first submittal. Applicant resubmits new
applications

Planning Board approves 5-0 in May 2025

City Commission tables July 2025

Applicant meets with staff, updates plans
Planning Board disapproves in September 2025



GRAPHIC BCALE

i B s WHITE CITY CEMETERY i ki
u:;r; :.rl:'-l:‘l I:\.-'."- ] FOMIMG: | R (1 gk w AD Py -m!'ﬂ‘ T
PARCEL Mo, 2453-1.21-0001-000-5 DAL _KL-E
T LAKDSCARL : Moath FFE a8 |
MR TE SOEWALE 1\ FUTERR / e
T T Dl M TE
TWaE=aa LHE r'.l‘lsf.l".hl;“ r:.l.:\-u.--' TEF LRSI
[T H+__t .
- - [ -”'-‘E' —_ i s _E‘...—_,__,,__:'__'z__z__ ”33.?? /us-u i ALFFER
r : — - . TS — —
"ﬁ_ T e i oo PAAL | I I_H" == - = R O ... B T ) 5
'\.\.‘.Wﬂlﬂu 1 ETAMTEY PARFIMNG | J |
T 1 h
B 2 3 a |, s 6 |, 7
L -.J:Llw-mu--r _I .I (B H & 5 ﬂ |E =
T — | I J  EOMERETE SREWLK | |
el 3 ¥ EPHERETE a2
[P ) v o T— —|- —_— —_—
b :»., M
o . N 1 E i T :
P DETAR (TP 00 MR R = e HTEART AT, s --l"L - i i ¥ LTI
LY R X F, LN -] o FARFREENT
FRRATE Ul I
:::ul_ﬂ'\n =
b _— ot — e L
ER:‘:I:\N Y 2 |-.‘||”|':"|I | I & EHCHETE R — —F G-
WL HT B - [ i | B
: g : ! | AT, B
W e N 32 __z}\ I 33 F 34 [ 35 P a6 ﬂ: 37 3 a8 .m:rl.n..an.m. |
‘-""""'"\ __,&" It | o wrance | I [ ) I % g
10° ROV, DEIRAT oM 5 o o \ : o | : b :
- | - ! =
) e SR S | I e L}_ e 14 ¥ =8
. - L ey e ey ' -
T COHCTETE SIDEALK o ! = — o S R o, S, s - I i
i 31 -‘i._, \ b I'{"'ﬂ — — — ——— T —= | ! f,_'i E
P ] TELNCL :
o i e §  ORr RETemTON X pér SL1 £q
II-.LI.:'ﬁNrL b 4 4" COMCRETE SIDEVALE A — — = — (B4 - MM E) PATHRT RETEWTIN | |+ AF TR = E
r el N - ,ﬁ"'" Ay e e & ..g\.-- P et | | D £
A 30 AT \ 4 | o i T 1 5 ' (-]
ZONING: RS-3 T ¥ by i g e il n: %
i y Ve i _}P . ] | | 1 [HCLE ~81 £
o o il | 2 k] 5 ]
COMNSTREUCTION MOTES e é} . 29 W . S i
amcH uan, S o S \\ " L . -::':,, | < concsers sozme . ] 16 ]'I"'I
£ f.-m- x“:w::' win % : S {\ o[ B wmcncan
E] Foor tost ¥ curs VAL SR o - ... | T wurren
T| moOED e Gk - H%ﬁnwjml\:_—_ _ b T e — — T
DN A i DO - #* l:é & GakiamGur T MDD WAL CURE R ) - ' I I I’ S
LRSI pe DETELS F l.-w-.;:-: LS = - o \\ . §
CUBR BAW par DETHLS < E
FTTL T T TR R _ ——— — e i o 1 | ’ MAROMEY
Ei-1 5T0F BoH 1 LAK DS Camr I ERCRETE S | — — | — | | . .:‘-,T: B
W= PEIELTRLAN TIGH w/ mik- TRy CLNTVE Ci: BLFFER (=i | | E )
O SIREET h s usE A0, 7 X ¥ ‘l' 25 | 24 23 22 | 1 s '
. Raciuz-420 .‘H_ | 21 20 19 | 17 dl L ]
a0 swcn LengTH45F e o meionn wonarsce [y e [ i i H i ” i
FLAATD o) SEEB0R Defta.0°4637" ¢ e | i |i i || l
L] wasp pRam par 0An ; s 1/ CRABSEGE T m“ﬁ | I i I
B i iR dangn LI'II:ll'll‘.i"...?nEi'“ R &% ey saaiar '\ . 5 | I H
B0 BN LT Chord Divecfion: S28°I0PE W oTmes - A | | | ”.E",‘.{‘;ﬁ | | Al
- — e Ly ET = o . ] " el
ETRIPING MOTES \ : T 1 33 - - - = all | :}-I:.l‘:-l-\.'ﬂllhl
[E] & 500 wax 2 5 e — —— 3
E) 1 sowo ware LEGAL DESCRIPTION T e —— S i
] 2+ soue wem Tl oA 388 FIET OF THE SO0TH 4344 FOET aTn = - — w m w”"’”' 1 — = = == ———
E] s wer e  wncn PR AT PRI e T o S W N e S S
RARIGE 40 LAST, 5T UUCIL COUMTY, FLORSEA, 4 i<t 1.5 bl
DEVELOPMENT DATA LEE AHD E0OEPT THOS LANDS DESTRISED W ZONING: RS-3 ERCTITH
PRCUECT AR AR LARES FFIC, 43, PAGE 1TH ST LIKK wars // PARCEL Mo, M H-0002-00s . PROREGIGH .
AN PARCEL 6D MO B 43— 000 | = 000= 0 L s oo e K‘x - k‘-. 0,
FI3 0N R LR ST AoN O Al s = LINEWORK & SYMBOL LEGEND
FROPORED PUTURE LAND LS LSRN AL L0W CERGTT (L] LAND USE BREAKDOWN T —— S ERCHLERR e U B8, LU
il nid "= TOTAL AFLA OF SUBICT PAECLL aEED W | 104 AC | eoO.0OR 127 Wi 3 FORT PERLE, FL AUDRES; IR — —h— SORAGE SO Q- P
PROPISED TOHMG FLapdlh DEWILIFUERT 20ME (P AELA OF ORI WETLARD 0 ar Q.00 AC [T P — e BHORE: . (775!, B98N R P s R m\\ MR, PARGIEE L
L L T el = Ly RlSabEmTaL ARCA OF WERLAKD BNTIR [ 000 AL 0008 — = =3 B — R S ]
AT ALLOMARLE [DEMSITY o= B el A0%AL DOWELOPUTRT AREA Bk ear oF LTS BO0.00% T T - EIE"EL" [T — — — RO (DASATT J*p- e el OO

FLORI LCEHEE Wi

o
Z
"
2 &
s W 85
i EI‘J E
v &
=
=
o
EL
=
)
= 0
w0
L > &
E EE
& h
0=
L
EE
=
=
o
O
e,
i ‘5-:1
i %
i
[ & ‘_I

ST
“

e
JFLERE SEAGETRRESER, PR

1009/ 2025

£ i
[

[Ed




Purpose of a Planned Development

 Sec 125-212 Planned Development Zone states “The intent is to establish a resilient
living and working environment through the application of enlightened
and imaginative approaches to community planning, stormwater infrastructure and
property design. A PD should provide a variety of natural features and scenic areas,
efficient and economical land use, improved amenities, orderly and economic
development, and the protection of adjacent existing and future development.”



Variety of Natural Features and Scenic Areas

* The project proposes three (3) dry ponds. The middle pond will be planted as a bioswale to provide
natural feel compared to a typical dry pond with bahia sod. A walking path will be constructed around
the pond.

CAP ROCK BOULDERS

LARGE EGG ROCK




Variety of Natural Features and Scenic Areas

* The two other ponds will be planted with existing sabal palms
relocated along the banks

~ NN

SABAL PALMS
CYPRESS TREES o
SPARTINA GRASSES {7




Variety of Nat

ural Features and Scenic Areas

PARCEL Ma. 2433-121-080)

ALL SABAL PALMS WITHIN DEVELOPMENT
AREA TO BE RELOCATED TO LANDSCAFPE
{ AREAS (228 TOTAL), SEE TREE DISPOSITION
TABLES FOR ALL EXISTING TREE
INFORMATION TYP.

EXISTING OAKS TO BE PRESERVED IN
LANDSCAPE AREAS TYP. (26 TOTAL)

—OAKS & PINES TREES WITHIN DEVELOPMENT AREA
“E TO BE REMOVED; SEE TREE DISPOSITION TABLES
OR

AL
FREaMay

EXISTING SABAL PALMS TO BE
JPRESERVED IN LANDSCAPE AREAS TYP.
(26 TOTAL)

EXISTING QAKS TO BE PRESERVED IN
LANDSCAPE AREAS TYP. (26 TOTAL)

EXISTING PINES TO BE PRESERVED IN
LANDSCAPE AREAS TYP. (5 TOTAL)

s

% . NOE"2645W A
10" LANDSCAPE STRIF TYP.

ALL SABAL PALMS WITHIN DEVELOPMENT
AREA TO BE RELOCATED TO LANDSCAFE
AREAS (228 TOTAL), SEE TREE DISPOSITION
TABLES FOR ALL EXISTING TREE
INFORMATION TYP

10" LANDSCAFE STRIP
TYP.

/—10' LANDSCAPE STRIP

TYP

L EXISTING TREE INFORMATION TYP,
'Y wno
K . 3 Tt
g
- ... Meeic M S - DRY
H DETENTION
AREA
= g s'T‘L{'"" - TYP.
.
—LOTS TYP.
5 -1
2
—LOTS TYP, " g ! 3
E t
DRY DETENTION = A —=&t \ g
AREA E * 3]5‘* M
e — — —— e —— - [ & i
r ; e = " =ow ;&
& . E
-3 m = 2
1 F L |
—————————————————— e e B — A b & | =
i = = = 3
5
i = r< 5
il 5 vl i bl &
$ ? R
£ ", o -
[ES 4 [ [ wh ; B =
| ¥ 2o ¥
e " -
.
LOTS TYP. i ® £y i Il = i 1
- i ||| | peTENTION
: AREA

TYP

Preserve 26 oaks (green)
Preserve 26 sabal palms(pink)
Preserve 5 pines (light blue)
Relocate 228 palms (blue)



Efficient and Economical Land Use

* Driveway pushed north to move traffic away from driveways to the south

* All lots pushed north to create 36’ buffer from parcel to south



menities

4 COMCRETE SIDI:'I'I'.I’\LK

10 LANDSCAPE
BUFEER \

I-1-°.\D!<J{K—\ " E B v e =
GAZEERD, b ] ]
Y, WITH 2 BBOS ; = DOS PARK
"‘h.' \#Pmm . L 3 STANDBY PARKING
) 3 X\
fi
-
CURRB TRANSITION
. ) * X — | | s i 4 COMCRETE SIDEWALK -
BUSSTOP N ; TGS N\ S mmern — | e i
3 o S ) LT P S o T T B T e
STDPB.-m STOF' b 25 Ftalig ‘% 8= I
SHEM, CROSSWALK - % U = = — MO0 MIAM CURE “,
{DETAIL (TYPICAL) & : : & m} INTEGRITY 8T, — _
) R .. ¥ 4 i k. =,
PRIVATE LIFT - Y, 3 e M PR PY ek R w1 T .
smnr:ms\ g p. ; m B = P B A
CONCRETE % % ; : s o
- s 4 ¥ yor Lot | ]
. " i J \PARK) .I | # CONGRETE SIDEWAL
Fia / |b L . . i
N\ 32 AR 533 & 34
- +
a 4 L | 4 FENCE
% P % A W : - ! :
\ ; L™l s .
d31 R = -
o A ; ;
] e . NCE
f SER
n, & CONCRETE SIDEWALK ' i —
® ~ " g -
A ,
} MAIL KIDSK'S : o
i .
GE C-:'ﬂ_ d"l ; ’&g’ :
) = LE ;
\ %?{n =0, oy UTILIT'f
2E oS i EASEMEN'I’
ZACak) = , —
e == % e ==
3 >
%, . "7

~no ,-\/ s




Improved Amenities-Bus Sto

;,-': \ -
%
L%E.J,

GAZEBO, ‘-_, 3 ‘ﬁ’ A T
» \_ WITH2BBQ'S R
- (PARK)

o X

BUS STOP

A

3AR, STOP
OSSWALK
(TYPICAL) \

NN

PRIVATE LIFT
STATION &
CONCRETE

DRIVEWAY




Protection of Adjacent and Existing Development

 West- Sunrise Boulevard
e East-FDOT Service Yard
* North- Cemetery

* South-RS-3 zoned single family residence
20’ drainage easement, 16’ increased landscape buffer, 15’ rear yard setback= 51’ between

. Droposed hous&anglap:mpaegey Imp - ey
= S o . I ? | | e e ¢
| # CONGRETE SIDEWALK | — — | | =
: Y
26 | | | | ' RETENTION
R e |}g B DRANAGE~ | £ E 2 i3 F: = [e L
- = = g (=3
WDRmSnﬂzLEE | | | ! | | ¥ O Swace IL ‘ g[ - — 4
EASEMENT \z! | | 10" DRAINAGE | :
= R e . . l | ~ EASEMENT ! | f
. =] L0 - | — e 1 £0.0 — = oy = T _ _?L_ . L
i e == e U ]
— i 1 e
- e o Il — e — — £" ¥
—___—  — 20" DRAINAGE EASEMENT —% — = _ g @ 4 H;u

:><fff§mm i 681.50’ —>=
. ZONING: RS-3 Ehiind



20' EXISTING 20'-25' RELOCATED 20' EXISTING
PINE SABAL PALMS OAK

[ ]
[ypica

Buffer

' ‘ 3' COCOPLUM

HEDGE

24" DWARF

FIREBUSH SUNRISE LAKES L% ARCHITECTURAL

SERYICES, LLC

WEST BUFFER









«'{5,;1-3#:;; Lol
il s
oy By

I
l_.'.
]






Added
Benefits

1,031 LF of additional

S ——— —aul
sidewalk to Bell Ave e

e 1,290 LF of 4” Force
Main

DR T T T

RRCRL Mg AT 11-0801 00

\WEIE RIS 38| 39 a0 a1 ||
i | | .
O I —
NNA, (=
o, \\..Lwﬁ, = — = =
SRR S | | i
PO 4e.| 45| 44 | a3 | 42 |
28 ‘_-J_-_‘___l_d

S e — e o ——

: ? —r— S - — 1 .
N \ 26 | 26 24| 23| 22 21 | 20| 19 | 1g Il
_. - | ] | | ] i

.._i = i == S— — — — —_ : _ﬁ




Architectural




i Gl
FamilyID¥

Architectural



.

CITY OF FORT PIERCE

ZONING ATLAS MAP AMENDMENT

OCTOBER 13th, 2025

D

«\0/'/{/ 0

Pulte-Cornerstone — REZONING (Master Planned Development)
2721 South Jenkins Road
(2324-413-0000-000-9 & 2324-431-0001-000-2




APPLICANT
Leslie Olson, District Planning Group

OWNER
Cassie McCrain, Cornerstone Fort Pierce Development, LLC

PARCEL ID #(S):
2324-413-0000-000-9 & 2324-431-0001-000-2

Pulte-Cornerstone — Master PD




SUMMARY

Request for review of application for a Zoning Atlas Map Amendment of two (2)
parcels of land to change the Zoning classification from General Commercial Zone
(C-3) to Pulte-Cornerstone Planned Development (PD) with an associated Master
Development Plan.

Per Article V Sections 125-212, and 125-314 of the City Code, the applicant is
requesting approval of a Master Planned Development (PD) Zoning District. The
application proposes a two-hundred-and-fifty-unit fee simple single-family
residential master planned development community with a range of home sizes,
a range of designs, and amenities such as a linear park connecting the
recreational area to a pocket park providing additional buffer for the new
neighborhood from [-95.

Pulte-Cornerstone — Master PD




HISTORY

On November 3, 2008, the City Commission approved a site plan to
construct a 383,605 square foot commercial development consisting of
eight (8) buildings by the name of Newberry Fields. The anchor tenant for
the proposed development was a Target retail store.

On December 9, 2024, the Planning Board reviewed and recommended
approval of the concurrent application for a Future Land Use Amendment
of the subject property. The applicant requested to change the Future
Land Use from GC, General Commercial to RM, Medium Density
Residential.

On August 11, 2025, the Planning Board recommended approval of the
proposed Master Planned Development with fourteen (14) conditions.

Pulte-Cornerstone — Master PD




SITE LOCATION - CITY LIMITS

SITE AREA= 49.92 +/- Acres




ZONING




FLU

RV TR RRARN
R, TR R R R

|

" L B A
8= Wirvrerrrogirizemm §

A I A A
FRIITIG S FRLLE IS TIIT R

B 77 rrirarerairescarrorio &
i it i Ty

#

][!}‘l‘

i




MASTER SITE PLAN

Scale: 1" =100 9

¥ SY 10 237 »y Narh




]

- 55 Total Lots
- 184 Total Lots

JINTERSTATE 95
BOUND

OFFRAMP
N
O|E (O|®|C|E|®

I

®

®|E

et

IR 4

®|®
®
®
e ®
P u< @
EN -
®
®

__ /LINEAR PARK

®® H®G®®E|®

®
®

BOBEIGGGEG®®

%

B

FEATURE

IDENTITY

MASTER SITE PLAN (NEW ILLUSTRATIVE SITE PLAN)

Moo E oo eeem| aee noeenese
o I

= TNV /66 T
|LORILSI] TOMLNOO HaLYM AN JION1 LS HLNON

1®eE @66 E G H|66MH®G G ® G| M ®®@ 6 @

B EEE®EH GO HE|®CH|®® M @G E GO ® @

|

@O HE GG

Cllcmifc]elN. i

Wa

4 ON)

b FLU:GC.

'l"/b




SITE DATA

Site Data

Slte Address:
Total Slte Area:

Additional R/W Dedication

Remaining Site Area

2721 S Jenklns Rd, Fort Plerce, FL 34981

49,92 Ac, /2,174,386 SF

0.54 Ac. /23,377 sf

Minimum Open Space (20%): (49.38 X 20%)

Existing Zoning:

49,38 Ac. / 2,151,009 sf

9.87 Ac. /430,202 SF

C-3 (General Commercial)

Proposed Zoning: PD (Planned Develcpment)
ExIsting FLU: GC (General Commerclal)
Proposed FLU: RM (Medlum Denslty Resl|dentlal)
Proposed Use! Single Family Residential
Proposed Lots / Dwelling Units: 250 Lots / Units
Parcel ID # 232441300000009
. 232443100010002
Density
Maxlmum Denslty: (RM)5 DU /Ac, (49.92 Ac. x 5 DU/ Ac.) 250 Unlts
Proposed Density: 250 Units
Proposed Gross Site Density: 5DU / Ac.
Lot Dimensional Standards
Lot Type A Lot Type B
Lot Area 4,400 sf Min. 3,300 sf Min.
Depth 110' 110
Width 40" Min. 30' Min.
Lot Coverage 60% Max. 55% Max.
Building Setbacks
Front 20" Min. 20' Min.
Side 3' Min. 3' Min.
Side Corner 15' Min. 15' Min.
Rear 10" Min. 10' Min.
Building Separation 6' Min. 6' Min.

Note: Roof overhangs, alr condltlonlng equlpment, [rrigatlon pumps and pool
equipment may encroach into the 3ft side setback, Roof overhangs
may encroach Into dralnage easements.




ORIGINAL SITE PLAN PHASING

— — Phasing Descrption e 250 Single-Family Homes (variety of homé
() m_::;' = 3 . SIZES)
S o (—kf;\j N - : ‘ == ¢ Linear Park (starts from the recreation
u _g i 3 ). el R area to the south)
L Are Jlfé = T e E— « Pocket Park
™ LI @ | ) : ) [ L = ‘:‘_‘.-.\ = '_'.'.}n_? M el e Lo 11, 202, 143)
S S e e N * Pool
SR =Bl = S
O, L s &1 ] [ | iy i .
6 - ' 0 o= ol \ e Recreational Playground
B @ |PHASE1 & & & W g '_i B ) \ ) i
o | e il =1 T 1 nl| \ * Public Art Identity Feature
@ || e [ Wi} | — o | o 10 gl _© I"(@-=== \
1 B8 gk e ll|f==([fe T & =, 5] 16 || B it e '
o | N ) :| e 5 i puase 2 [l R R \
| (| 235-3 Hill ole|aleleé e ' E e ) [Oepleene ":\ \
B ===k ——— _ _| - — - | - =4+ - - £y '
= = R e - \y \ Phase 1 n
H Tl = | ] [C) 0] P—
' NEEISE RN EEEIEEE AN SN A EEME [fq! e | SN | ECH | R—" \‘
1 -+ 1 = @ | @ @ i
e Gthiaeon 5 HEl MR O
j [N (NN ARNNNENNRNEN | oow  moRiEcE | gy \| Phase 2
el i el s s s 3| S = i = ) oo 5 ® e \
T T ' : | N |
w1 § alololcle alelellolemlololele|solelolo L= T — ‘
N S e e S Y S SN | G _\ Bus Stop
ﬁ?'_ g _m— = e - —:l:lz-:'z'.m;%.— - E——— — e — -"'. -lmn'u'w_ _—= 1
—ﬁr ————— . _Ew—?'_‘?i ____ - - e = ~E&/” _ _—_"IT_:_——

\9 "4



PLANNING BOARD CONCERNS - 8.11.25 MEETING

The Board was concerned about the School District’s approval of the
School Bus Stop location

It was confirmed that the School District approves of a more eastern
location and encourages that bus stop locations for all developments not
to ride through residential developments.

The Board requested that the Original Bus Stop location and cross-
access be included in the proposed Phase 1 of the Planned Development.

The applicant has submitted a new Phasing Plan with a new Bus Stop
location.

Pulte-Cornerstone — Master PD




PROPOSED MASTER SITE PLAN PHASING

Phasing Description

T PRRICT WL BF BFYFIGR H TWE PHARSS BFFES TE PRlING |16 QN THS SHFET
PHASE 1

THE LT3 AND IKFRASTRLICTURE O THE SO0UTSERR PORTION OF THE STTE AMD T=E SIUTH & RORTH ENTRARCES 0 RIS ADAD

5 TUSH LUNVES 45 AFQUIRST! FOR YS-ATLL AR AZ555E

LARES ARD ASCAZENT RY DETUNTIOR AREAS WILLBE CHSTAUSIRE TG AUIDE STOANIMATER TREATWINT AR ATTERLLATION FOR 2HAS
VLETS AW PESHE O THE BEASWARS BRE LLuE ALIBWE WITH THE ELITFELL 8P AND SRSHARSE CEHTABL

5 = S — o LA B AT SN CMMUNCATCNS . AV S0 4 T 1
& : l—:—@ I 4 —-,] 'u.f:_‘“ S . "% FHGE L AVEA U8 4435 FOY T M OBKLHDUESTHAT WALIWCL L RIS ST P BASTCTLNE 44, SO
g i { LR R i PHASE &
I f - == = R A T o < s G o
= | ]% | 1 4 ) B T TR o o A LSS P A R
@ 1 N — ] | T @
useaton @ | | @ f . ! ® | Legend
e, —— =1 | 1 | ) ) .
@ T IJ g “:, @ |‘| ; . @ . M Model Hame Lols (161, 152, 183)
B —= 8 e |
o || D . Tl
o ||| T4l N
|| e wl@ﬂd .C)
fum ||| T
B |k @ ] PHASE1 & | = @ || = : N .
e (|l e ! B | [e e S
® i = | : e[ 2=
@ @ s | - il e e : <) wa
| = ) &) |
&} =

[6]l6] E@,\@@@‘
E
¥

ol

lololol zlele|e|m

i
-
:_
|

i
;E’
T
|
|

T

; = ® [ol
@@ | _® @ o
+ St =t : ~@ 4@ ® |
L el@ EHEEE @m@@@a@@@@| = | = | o
, THE B @ | Ig g!
. = A = = == — ® = I

- .‘——‘—_:t-__-_____ i oy |1 e " l ] @ kl \ 3

r [ Iz | o [ o] \
Ml olo|e = |o|o|e|e|=|e|e| @] 1 i L \
e — e e o e ey it e e e e - Pl o e i e e P . e S oy o TR i ______:___ L o ‘..\...
—=— = ,f: e -"_______ '_""""‘ 3 — = -"'aJEimN;L:f;a;] e - ._ =
5 JENKINS RD [C.R, §11) ]




Original Phase 2 Line

= = _— ey
= T AR RREA

R = =
Al e Adjacent Site Plan
Ze T —: ] L= 'I. e = o
C | ) f"*]l\l_[ =
& I8 = Tl - EEEEEEEEEEEEEENEN
a a g T g = - 4 »‘l\*f.h
A ! -] & ] = — - ==
= MR B et =
a=—f{e il B e e [l .
] [ sl —=1! LL o= = C A
L8 i (e _fill—e || et | ross ACCess
(& ik — B =] iR —
= =01 a { = =S e r
e =5 [ &l & Ml e \ ¥
e M o pHasE 1 & B 5 = e Ml e[s : B
it e L & w il a] [ = (| B ﬁ
2 R = a & | —T—— & B8
e = a | Hl: y s == & e
2 fete S 1= 1e I |=t‘ | [ CHE
] ] | =iis il = JxE il PHASE 2
| ] e . P H
I | SRR | s, SRR Original Bus Stop
gLy B ! = liln_l! e ¥ IR el .
T = e Location
FTTTTTH LT WETT e |
| Helels el oo nm e siassa|een ol aesle @
| o . |- m— = = s
- TE]HEB”' l@ah e e m elee e eiﬂ'a el B le-@ =)
| SR ".l.'_l_.'..-.__ — A = = _“-__ Aol e
LT P ET TP f el |ﬂ"l LT
| Blejelsierifil [eolols locieimielselemmpsiolaisielole
__l-,._.J e T = ie——— ] :

New Bus Stop
Location




ORIGINAL BUS ROUTE OPTION

Phasing Description

4 THE TR BT LTS BT 0

T 8 BRI L
e

Gt
el S WELATI 118

M wood v Lot (181, 162, 1631

Legend

c ———
o .\\‘\\\ -
=
o .vnld- ﬂr ..\\\..u
o O 2 LT o
R o pl\\\ nta-mn.__a
Q k- s e
n 7D !
w oL i
c =T I
o= N = st =
2 @ g o ===
Oal i 2 llkic/olo|n|ele
m_. $ m__.@
- ¥
£eh" e INRelele
e} ) | =4 L

%ﬂ | —
i Gﬁ_“ g Bloe| 8@
i j il ¥

s e
- -

c
@«
— m”. prr =
a8 o8 Djo[o|o|D| y (0| __ ele” i, i
O i ] I ®l[e | P
o B olo|m{o]olo| £ olo|olfti—24 il o
e ; i T L oo ke
) = = e __ aya | ®
o =< e ————— 1l © )| O ©
) & il | HEEOX | KT A
.ﬂ é (|| {m [olojojn]jolo|mjojejojil o6 ®
CHIE
© N b i le_.._w.lu-llh,;e " ®l[e | s
i ' ) [l
M . ok © | “ O} O] ﬁ. O
—_ — it ik T || TR RO =
{431 h — D 1 @je i @ i
i 'to /00 ;e ©
4 = ._“ j [ wm.B 0] _.3.. @ 3
-_dl.u .. = — |\_.\ i I E _= [O] tmm
e i ' olojoolo|nio|oo|niolee ooloiflill_©j[e ikl © |[iAE
0 L L o4 il ©
— M ole__ola |
: e B .I:..._* o] [@ _illlv—=17;
; _ y _v e ©lle | ORI
T it 0000|000 B|@ @@.E@@@ﬂ@@@_h__ olle M & “
R - o=tk _ette it —elig;
- _m, Low ot .m_mll o= @ |le | @ |i] “
i “n i © = [j|lt o e T _@ v.
Y /7 I O ([ So = —
=S o B == =1
i M lololeo|n|o|o|o|n|olojo|n ) nlolo]mlolo|a |l IS roalV
T_I.ull Jaled L H |1 ) 1A
: e e ] 1G] )
i i = —— 3 = 4 | B_“\
B % B! N R = = = =5 : B 1 .ed_“__
A2 _mm_a@eae.w@me@am_eeeamé@am o - QM.NW
] i

1




NEW BUS ROUTE OPTION

it —— il Revised Master Site Plan
== |
=== b @ [ o T i
B M@ KT WeE e A g L T
-‘\--‘1-—--! - i
@ H | E 8 T _. R e h%:’ nr:m:lzmrmuw T AT G T -munwslurw-lnrn-ulwrmw?m-
@ I | e @ ! ) -‘\!_-::fr.\‘_..\ o ) n'ﬂ :»lc:'."‘lu“h'ﬂ AR WP Tk R R T R A TR S BRI e
a_ o o i 5 =
a8 = | T @ | fa:
2z 46 i © - | b
[Z] It ] ® ® ® ! LI — o “'“-.,_H_‘ = o M ol Home Lot (161, 162, 183)
' T @ | | I | | ST R
ek e e \\__\ N
& | 1 =t B | = B o R
© e fllfieS | e Fj;:*--“ =" Revised School
@ ° =3 | I == -
| J 1 5 PHASE 1 & ;ﬁ: ot om e i e s e Bus Stop Location
@ i@ 8 Ul = Ef'l 8@ | | P \
i © I B & = e i e]L® e i \
L) 1<) [ (=] a | @ H=8 | " s
— | o | = i -
@ r_f.':, e NIl & r:-m [Z) =) I IE i ~\
=] =j|8 il B8 e B 'l )
5| |olo|a|[e_Thli—e é@sjaeaé e ire]e 1 = B=PPRIE \
el ite gl o)l L1] 1L il eln /AN S
P e i — : 1 Y
T - SJENKNS WD [CR 81 = ::::::l::?
s - i ~gr" i TR
S lm ==
LIPS —— B [ /




PD BENEFITS

« The linear park leverages a creative use of stormwater facilities by transforming them
into bioswales and rain gardens through which a meandering 1/3 mile long walking
path winds, with resting stops overlooking the naturalized and lake vistas.

« At the southwest corner of the property, and the terminus of the linear park, lies a
pocket park where a sculptural art installation is proposed. This art installation will be
visible to the travelling public on 1-95 and is intended to create a beautiful and unique
sense of arrival in the City of Fort Pierce.

* The site is designed with a grid network of streets, which have been designed to
minimize lots directly adjacent to 1-95.

Pulte-Cornerstone — Master PD




TRAFFIC ANALYSIS

O OO ° O OO °

O OO °

Weekday Daily
2,336 Total
1,168 Entry
1,168 Exit

Weekday Peak Hours of Adjacent Street in the AM
171 Total

43 Entry

128 Exit

Weekday Peak Hour of Adjacent Street in the PM
234 Total

147 Entry

87 Exit

Pulte-Cornerstone — Master PD ¢




LANDSCAPING — Street Trees

The applicant has provided two (2) typical sections of 70 ft. and 60 ft. Right-Of-Ways for the two (2) entrance
boulevards with street trees, a typical section of 40 ft. Right-Of-Way for residential streets with street trees, and a typical
section of 40 ft. Right-Of-Way for the Commercial Access Roadway Tract in the northeast corner of the property.

Sectlon A=A; 40" Typlcal Resl|dent|a] Roadway Tract Section B-B: 70" Maln Entrance Roadway Tract

Secllon C-C: €0 Secondary Entrance Roadway Tract Sectlon D-D: 40" Commerclal Access Roadway Tract

Scafe; N1 5 Scafe; N,T 5,




TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE

All affected departments have reviewed the proposed ZONING ATLAS MAP
AMENDMENT (Master Planned Development) with regards to consistency with

established ordinances and requirements of the City Code and Comprehensive
Plan.

The St. Lucie County School District has been notified of the bus stop
location change.

S
&
S c
. 7% =
A
G

Pulte-Cornerstone — Master PD SomeS




NEW CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

1. A Final PD shall be required prior to any development activities with the
Master Site Plan by HJA Design Studio, Job No. 2024-31, 06.13.2025.

2. The minimum Open Space shall be 20% of the Final PD site area.

3. The maximum Density shall be 5 dwelling units per acre of the Final PD site
area.

4, The Final PD plan shall conform to the requirements of the City Code of

Ordinances unless alternate standards are approved through the Planned
Development Agreement.

6] e
% &
SURRISS>

Pulte-Cornerstone — Master PD




CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

5. A Gopher Tortoise Survey shall be submitted within ninety (90) days of land
clearing.

6. After approval of the Final PD Site Plan, a detailed stormwater and
drainage plan and statement shall be submitted at the time of Building Permit.

Pulte-Cornerstone — Master PD




CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

/. The Final PD site plan shall be in unified control and property ownership.
All land intended to be included in the planned development shall be under the
legal control of the applicant.

8. The Final PD site plan shall include a general description of the buildings
and streetscapes including standards for height, building coverage, parking areas,
and public improvements proposed for the development.

S
&
S c
. 7%
A
%

Pulte-Cornerstone — Master PD SomeS




CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

9. Prior to approval of the Final PD site plan, the applicant shall submit a
proposed declaration of covenants governing the use, maintenance, and
continued protection of the common open space or other shared areas within the
planned development. The declaration shall bind successors in title to any
commitments concerning completion of the project, its maintenance, and
operation.

10.  Phasing of this project will require the following at the time of Final PD:

The approximate date when construction of the project can be expected to begin.

Pulte-Cornerstone — Master PD




CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

The number of phases in which the project will be built and the approximate date
when construction of each phase can be expected to begin and completed.

A general description of the buildings and streetscapes including standards for
height, building coverage, parking areas, and public improvements proposed for
each phase of the development.

S
&
S c
. 7% =
A
G

Pulte-Cornerstone — Master PD SomeS




CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

11.  The Final PD site plan shall contain the following information, at minimum:
a. A Landscape and irrigation plan per section 123-4 of the City Ordinance. b.
Proposed lot lines and other divisions of land for management, use or allocation
purposes. c. The location, size and height of present and proposed buildings and
structures. d. The location and size of all areas proposed to be conveyed,
dedicated, or reserved for streets, parks, playgrounds, public and semi-public
buildings, and similar uses. e. The existing and proposed vehicular circulation
system, including off-street parking, and loading areas. f. The pedestrian
circulation system, including its interrelationships with the vehicular circulation
system, within the development to adjacent streets, showing all curb cuts and
sidewalks. g. The existing and proposed utility systems, including sanitary sewers,
storm sewers and water, electric and gas lines. h. The proposed buffering
treatment of the perimeter of the planned development, refuse stations, storage
areas, or loading areas, including materials and techniques used such as screens,
fences, and walls.

Pulte-Cornerstone — Master PD




CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

12. A Plat shall be required prior to the application for building permits in
respect of vertical construction.

13. Contact the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) to ensure
appropriate noise attenuation measures are implemented to eliminate the
potential for traffic noise intrusion into the residential development. Enhancements
to minimize interior noise, such as but not limited to double-glazed glass windows,
sound absorptive insulation, and door treatments that meet HUD specifications for
all units shall be incorporated into the residential units prior to granting a certificate
of occupancy.

Pulte-Cornerstone — Master PD




CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

14. The project site is party to an access easement (recorded at ORB 3093,
PG 2587) in favor of the owner of the 1.51-acre parcel located 2627 S. Jenkins
Road (Parcel ID 2324-800-0001-000-4), immediately adjacent to the north. Prior
to approval of a Final Planned Development site plan for any phase contemplated
under the Master Development Plan, the applicant will provide staff with a copy of
a recorded easement negotiated between the applicant and the adjacent property
owner for their mutual benefit, preserving the adjacent owner’s right of access
through the project site.

Pulte-Cornerstone — Master PD




ZONING ATLAS MAP AMENDMENT

Staff recommends that the Planning Board recommend APPROVAL of the
proposed ZONING ATLAS MAP AMENDMENT (MASTER PLANNED
DEVELOPMENT), with the new fourteen (14) Conditions of Approval.

 Consistent with Section 125-136 of City Code & the
Comprehensive Plan

1 Does not adversely affect the public health, safety,
convenience and general welfare

Pulte-Cornerstone — Master PD




PB ACTIONS

eAlternative actions of the Planning Board:

« Recommend APPROVAL of the proposed (Master
Planned Development) with the associated development
plan with changes and/or alternative conditions.

« Recommend DENIAL of the proposed (Master Planned
Development) with the associated development plan.

N4
Pulte-Cornerstone — Master PD Neumse®




.

CITY OF FORT PIERCE

ZONING ATLAS MAP AMENDMENT

OCTOBER 13th, 2025

D

«\0/'/{/ 0

Pulte-Cornerstone — REZONING (Master Planned Development)
2721 South Jenkins Road
(2324-413-0000-000-9 & 2324-431-0001-000-2




ORIGINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

1. A Final PD shall be required prior to any development activities with
the Master Site Plan by HJA Design Studio, Job No. 2024-31, 06.13.2025.

2. The minimum Open Space shall be 20% of the Final PD site area.

3. The maximum Density shall be 5 dwelling units per acre of the Final
PD site area.

4. The Final PD plan shall conform to the requirements of the City Code

of Ordinances unless alternate standards are approved through the Planned
Development Agreement.

5. A Gopher Tortoise Survey shall be submitted within ninety (90) days
of land clearing to ensure that all Gopher Tortoises are accounted for and
undisturbed.

Pulte-Cornerstone — Master PD




ORIGINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

6. If required by the USFWS (US Fish and Wildlife Service), a Wood Stork
foraging Habitat Assessment shall be carried out on site within ninety (90)
days of land clearing.

7. After approval of the Final PD Site Plan, a detailed stormwater and
drainage plan and statement shall be submitted at the time of Building
Permit.

8. The Final PD site plan shall be in unified control and property
ownership. All land intended to be included in the planned development
shall be under the legal control of the applicant.

9. The Final PD site plan shall include a general description of the
buildings and streetscapes including standards for height, building
coverage, parking areas, and public improvements proposed for the
development.

Pulte-Cornerstone — Master PD




ORIGINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

10. The Final PD site plan shall include all agreements, provisions and
covenants which govern the use, maintenance, and continued protection of
the planned development and any of its common space or other shared
areas. This material shall include material which binds successors in title of
any commitments concerning completion of the project and its maintenance
and operation.

11. If the applicant intends to phase the project, please include a
development phasing schedule indicating:

The approximate date when construction of the project can be expected to
begin.
The number of phases in which the project will be built and the approximate

date when construction of each phase can be expected to begin and
completed.

Pulte-Cornerstone — Master PD




ORIGINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

A general description of the buildings and streetscapes including standards for height,
building coverage, parking areas, and public improvements proposed for each phase of the
development.

12. The Final PD site plan shall contain the following information, at minimum: a. A
Landscape and irrigation plan per section 123-4 of the City Ordinance. b. Proposed lot lines
and other divisions of land for management, use or allocation purposes. c. The location,
size and height of present and proposed buildings and structures. d. The location and size
of all areas proposed to be conveyed, dedicated, or reserved for streets, parks,
playgrounds, public and semi-public buildings, and similar uses. e. The existing and
proposed vehicular circulation system, including off-street parking, and loading areas. f.
The pedestrian circulation system, including its interrelationships with the vehicular
circulation system, within the development to adjacent streets, showing all curb cuts and
sidewalks. g. The existing and proposed utility systems, including sanitary sewers, storm
sewers and water, electric and gas lines. h. The proposed buffering treatment of the
perimeter of the planned development, refuse stations, storage areas, or loading areas,
including materials and techniques used such as screens, fences, and walls.

Pulte-Cornerstone — Master PD




ORIGINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

13. A Unity of Title with the St. Lucie County Clerk of Courts and a Parcel
Combination with the St. Lucie County Property Appraiser shall be
completed prior to the issuance of any Building Permit.

14. Contact the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) to ensure
appropriate noise attenuation measures are implemented to eliminate the
potential for traffic noise intrusion into the residential development.
Enhancements to minimize interior noise, such as but not limited to double-
glazed glass windows, sound absorptive insulation, and door treatments
that meet HUD specifications for all units shall be incorporated into the
residential units prior to granting a certificate of occupancy.

Pulte-Cornerstone — Master PD




SR A it

T2ONING o
'Ved for ¢ h
his as
For Pro,
GAare inform, Esrt-
) a67-375e

Pplicatic,,

=3

Friday, September 26, 2025 - 7:55 AM
20250926_075520.jpg
/Internal storage/DCIM/Camera

Galaxy Z Flip5

5.75 MB 4000x3000 12MP
ISO 50 24mm 0.0ev F1.8 1/679 s

# Add tag

PULTE-CORNERSTONE — MASTER PD




s A
BLIC HEARING

A REZONING a i i
ING application F
been received for this prDD;ﬁ!sy

For more information:

(772) 467-3737

Friday, September 26, 2025 - 8:01 AM
20250926_080149.jpg
/Internal storage/DCIM/Camera

Galaxy Z Flip5
7.08 MB 4000x3000 12MP
ISO 50 24mm 0.0ev F1.8 1/7

PULTE-CORNERSTONE — MASTER PD




1. A Final PD shall be required prior to any development activities with the Master Site
Plan by HJA Design Studio, Job Mo. 2024-31, 06.13.2025.

2. The minimum Cpen Space shall be 20% of the Final PD site area.
3. The maximum Density shall be 3 dwelling units per acre of the Final PD site area.
4, The Final PD plan shall conform to the requirements of the City Code of Ordinances

unless alternate standards are approved through the Planned Development Agreement.

B, A Gopher Tortoise Survey shall be submitted within ninety (90) days of land clearing
A Gopher Tortoise Survey shall be submitted within ninety (90) days of land clearing.

6 ¥ . HEPAS LS P¥itdtife Serviceh PR S S T
; . iod N 55 ¢ -

7. After approval of the Final PD Site Plan, a detailed stormwater and drainage plan and
statement shall be submitted at the time of Building Permit.

8. The Final PD site plan shall be in unified control and property ownership. All land
intended to be included in the planned development shall be under the legal control of the
applicant.

9. The Final PD site plan shall include a general description of the buildings and
streetscapes including standards for height, building coverage, parking areas, and public
improvements proposed for the development.

10, HetirmaPBsteptorshatbrctodesttogresmemtsprovistorsarmdcoveramtswhich
f Thi . ek .
b Lot ’ . 5 £ .

Prior to approval of the Final PD site plan, the applicant shall submit a proposed
declaration of covenants governing the use, maintenance and continued protection of
the common open space or other shared areas within the planned development. The
declaration shall bind successors in title to any commitments concerning completion
of the project and its maintenance and operation.

11, HftHesppitcantintermtstophase-theprojectoleaseimotordeadevetopmentplersing

Phasing of this project will require the following at the time of Final PD:

PULTE-CORNERSTONE — MASTER PD




The approximate date when construction of the project can be expected to begin.

The number of phases in which the project will be huilt and the approximate date when
construction of each phase can be expected to begin and complated.

A general description of the buildings and streetscapes including standards for height,
building coverage, parking areas, and public improvements proposed for each phase of the
development.

The applicant will wark with the neighbor owning the commercial property located

adjacent to and north of the planned development to relocate the neighbor's existing
access easement through the planned development to the commercial access road
shown on the Master PD site plan.

PULTE-CORNERSTONE — MASTER PD




	MinSt. Lucie County Housing Overview
	MinStaff Presentation
	MinLetter from Resident Debra Johns
	MinLetter from Resident Judy Biglin 
	MinApplicant Presentation
	MinStaff Presentation

